

MEETING: REGIONAL SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, January 29, 2001

NOTE change of day and time. The regular standing

TIME: 3:00 p.m.—4:45 p.m.

meeting time will be determined at this special meeting.

PLACE:

Room 370, Metro Regional Center, 600 NE Grand Avenue, Portland

I. Call to Order and Announcements

Susan McLain

5 min. *II. Approval of November 15 minutes

Susan McLain

5 min. III. Introduction of Susan Anderson

Lee Barrett

The Director of the new Office of Sustainable Development, City of Portland, will share some thoughts about this new function.

10 min. IV. REM Director's Update

Terry Petersen

45 min. *V. New Chair's Opening Remarks and Discussion

Susan McLain

□ Expectations of the Metro Council and SWAC Chair during 2001

Recent events at Metro and their relation to SWAC:

Theodiff events at Metro and their relation to SVAC.

Organization of the Council and Committees for 2001

Passage of Ballot Measure 26-10 eliminating the Executive Officer position

Ordinance No. 00-860A regarding Metro advisory committees

□ Discussion: SWAC's expections during 2001

20 min. *VI. 2001 SWAC Meeting Schedule and Work Plan

D.Anderson/McLain

Set the time and day for the standing SWAC meeting during 2001

□ Upcoming Metro issues for SWAC in 2001

□ SWAC members' issues for 2001

15 min. VII. Regional Transfer Stations

Terry Petersen

An update on the status of the regional transfer station franchises, including policy issues that emerged during the application process, and the revised hearing

schedule.

Comments welcome.

5 min. VIII. Other Business and Adjourn

Susan McLain

All times listed on this agenda are approximate. Items may not be considered in the exact order listed.

Chair:

Susan McLain (797-1553)

Alternate Chair: Bill Atherton (797-1887)

Staff:

Lin Bernhardt (797-1640) or Doug Anderson (797-1788)

Committee Clerk: Connie Kinney (797-1643)

MLTCIK S. share Dept SWACKgenda 01170 Iswac agastoc

^{*} Materials for items are included with this agenda.

Approval of Minutes from November 15, 2000 SWAC Meeting (Action Item)

Metro Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) Meeting Minutes November 15, 2000

Members / *Alternates

Councilor Ed Washington, Chair

Dean Kampfer, Waste Management (disposal sites)

Michael Borg, (Clackamas County haulers)

Merle Irvine, Willamette Resources, Inc. (disposal sites)

*Vince Gilbert, East County Recycling (disposal sites)

Lee Barrett, City of Portland

Tanya Schaefer (Multnomah County citizen)

John Lucini, SP Newsprint (recycling end users)

*Tam Driscoll, City of Gresham (East Multnomah County and cities)

Sarah Jo Chaplen, City of Hillsboro (Washington County cities)

JoAnn Herrigel, City of Milwaukie (Clackamas County cities)

Steve Schwab, Sunset Garbage Collection (Clackamas County haulers)

Mike Leichner, Pride Disposal (Washington County haulers)

Glenn Zimmerman, Wood Waste Reclamation (composters)

Rick Winterhalter, Clackamas County

Lynne Storz, Washington County

David White, Oregon Refuse & Recycling Association (at-large haulers)

Jeff Murray, Far West Fibers (recycling facilities)

Jane Olberding (business ratepayer)

Frank Deaver, Washington County citizen

Mike Miller, Gresham Sanitary Service (Multnomah County haulers)

Non-voting Members Present

Doug DeVries, Specialty Transportation Services

Chris Taylor, DEO

Kathy Kiwala, Clark County, WA

Terry Petersen, REM

Metro and Guests

Tim Raphael, Celilo Group

Dan Schooler, CRC

John Houser, Metro Council

Easton Cross, Easton Cross Consulting

Karen Feher, Metro

Doug Drennen, DCS

Steve Kraten, REM

Tom Wyatt, BFI

Jan O'Dell, REM

Janet Matthews, REM

Bill Metzler, REM

Man RC Law DAG

Matt Hickey, BAS

Cherie Yasami, ASD

Tom Chaimov, REM

Roy Brower, REM

Eric Merrill, Waste Connections

Connie Kinney, REM

Estelle Mazurkiewicz, ASD

Mary Sue Gilliland, DEQ

Meg Lynch, REM

Julie Cash, REM Bill Metzler, REM

Scott Klag, REM

Ray Phelps, Ray Phelps Consultants

Ken Scholes, AGG

Solid Waste Advisory Committee Meeting of 11/15/00 Page 1

Jim Watkins, REM Brian Heiberg, Heiberg Garbage Dick Springer Maria Roberts, REM Charles Bishop, YO Dave Kunz, DEQ Lin Bernhardt, REM

Call to Order and Announcements

Chair Washington brought the meeting to order.

Chair welcomed the new SWAC member, Jane Olberding, and introduced her to Solid Waste Advisory Committee members.

Mr. Dick Springer, representing Friends of the Columbia Gorge, gave a quick presentation to the SWAC, restating the group's opposition to trucking garbage through the gorge to the Columbia Ridge Landfill in Arlington.

Chair Washington was presented with a cherrywood world clock in appreciation of his efforts as a Metro Council member for the past 9 years.

Chair Washington, in accepting the gift, stated he never entered into public life for the awards. Councilor Washington told how extremely important it was that he had made his recently deceased wife, Jean, a part of his public life, because the long hours away from home required a great deal of devotion from the home front. Councilor Washington said he would continue to work for the President of Portland State University. Councilor Washington told the Committee that the past 9 years have been a wonderful part of his life, and he thanked committee members for their dedication toward meeting the region's goals in recycling and continuing the tradition of making Oregon a better place to live. Councilor Washington invited the committee members to keep in touch, and if they were so inclined, to seek him out at Portland State and enjoy a lunch at some future time.

REM Director's Updates

Mr. Petersen said that as a result of Measure 93 not passing in the recent election, the new excise tax, which converts the tax from a percentage to a "per-ton" tax, will go into effect on December 1st, 2000, resulting in a per-ton tax of \$4.68/per ton. Mr. Petersen said that the Regional Environmental Management Department will be mailing out Administrative Procedures this Friday (November 17, 2000).

Mr. Petersen said a new chapter of the Metro Code was passed regarding Metro's advisory committees. He said this will result in some changes to the tenure of committee members appointed to SWAC. He said he will announce at a future meeting just what those changes will mean to current members.

Mr. Petersen announced there are two pending applications for regional transfer station franchises. One is with Willamette Resources, Inc., in Willsonville; the other is the Waste Management facility in Troutdale. He said the Wilsonville facility application was received October 11, the Recycle America application October 30. There was a 30-day public comment

period, which are due November 15 and December 4, respectively. Mr. Petersen said staff is prepared to take the Wilsonville facility franchise to the Council on December 6, and the Recycle America franchise on January 17, 2001. Mr. Petersen noted that any inquiries concerning these applications should be directed to Roy Brower, at 797-1657.

Mr. Petersen said the change-of-ownership request from STS (Metro's waste transporter) is currently being evaluated. He said the new owner is an investment firm called Churchill, whose firm is being requested to give Metro assurance that STS will continue operating. He said that given the financial difficulties that STS is currently facing, it is very important that Metro receive those types of assurances before going forward with a recommendation from REM. Mr. Petersen said he will be putting forward his recommendation to the Executive Officer sometime this week, and to the Council on December 6, 2000. There were no further questions.

Mr. Petersen said he wanted to remind the committee about future agenda topics and issues that might be coming before the SWAC in 2001. He asked the members if there were additional topics of interest during the first half of the new year they would like included besides:

- Metro/Local Government Waste Reduction Plan.
- Review of Metro's Regional System Fee Credit Program. This is the credit that Metro provides the material recovery facilities (MRFs) on the payment of the regional system fee based on how much recovery the facilities achieve. He reminded the committee that this is a one-year program that sunsets each year. The Metro Council has approved extensions of that program without any extensive review for the past three years. Mr. Petersen asked the committee to give staff members some advice on whether or not that program should be reinstated for another year.
- REM Strategic Plan. Mr. Petersen said that during the last half of 2001, REM staff will be implementing the strategic plan that Ms. Janet Matthews will be coordinating. He said there are many policy issues involved in this undertaking, including whether or not Metro should continue owning transfer stations, a topic SWAC will discuss.

Mr. Petersen said that unless committee members have any additional comments, he will recommend to the new SWAC Chair in January that we hold SWAC meetings every other month due to fewer discussion topics. Mr. Petersen said he will continue to provide SWAC members with information updates on what the department is doing through a different medium than monthly meetings.

Mr. Petersen invited comments.

Mr. Gilbert commented that he would like the committee to pursue ideas on how to escalate and support recycling throughout the region. He suggested an emphasis on recycling should always be on the table.

Mr. Kunz suggested that discussion should be pursued on the impact on the region of any new legislative efforts DEQ and others may have.

Chair Washington asked Mr. Kunz what medium might be used to bring this information to the committee.

Mr. Kunz suggested that DEQ staff might be able to make periodic presentations on some of the realistic proposals that are being considered through legislation.

Mr. White stated that it is important to keep SWAC updated on the work of the Rate Review Committee.

Chair Washington commented that he does not have any idea as to who will be asked to Chair the SWAC next year. But he would suggest that SWAC, at its first meeting of the new year, invite the newly elected Presiding Officer to make a presentation and explain the new focus that the Council will have as the result of Metro's newly adopted Charter amendment. He said the new amendment does not take place for another two years, but the Council will be refocusing and reorganizing to accommodate the changes. There will be six Council district representatives and a Council President who will be elected region-wide. It is the Chair's perspective that there may be more emphasis and direction to the Council than what has happened under the current Charter.

Mr. White asked that SWAC be kept up to date on the Rate Review Committee's discussion of the new tip fee and the regional system fee credit program. He suggested that if SWAC would only be meeting every other month that these discussions be relayed to the committee so it could be kept on RRC recommendations.

Chair Washington suggested that a joint meeting of SWAC and the Rate Review Committee be the first meeting of the year if that is possible.

Mr. Petersen said a January meeting would definitely take place. He said that hopefully agenda plans would be set forth by that time so the committee would have a better idea of what issues are coming up in the year 2001 for REM

Recovery Rates

Mr. Metzler said he would like to discuss how Metro will move forward based on the discussion at the last SWAC meeting. He said the main topics covered at that time were the recovery rate proposal, changes to the system fee credit rate calculation, and the main issue, whether the new 25% facility recovery rate will work as intended to ensure recovery from mixed dry waste. Mr. Metzler showed a PowerPoint presentation (see Attachment A).

He said that the discussion revolved around "what counts" toward that recovery rate. It was staff's perception that committee members agreed with the concept of the 25% recovery rate proposal; however, there was some confusion with regard to the definitions of recovered materials, and therefore, no recommendations were made at the October SWAC meeting.

Mr. Metzler said that at the October meeting members requested additional clarity and uniformity for the definitions of what counts. He said staff proposes that the recovery rate remain unchanged for now and focus on resolving the definitions question.

Staff is proposing that Metro continue to use a single recovery rate to calculate the Regional System Fee Credits and the excise tax. Excise tax credits and the 25% minimum material recovery rate will be based on the same formula.

Staff will begin contacting facility operators immediately to revise (if necessary) and standardize certain material category definitions. It has become apparent at last month's discussions that materials are being described differently from facility to facility. Metro will endeavor to visit each of the facilities to ensure that each facility is consistent one with the other, and take measurements to understand if any other changes need to be made. After this study is completed, staff will bring a recommendation to SWAC for approval and forward its recommendations to the Council.

Ms. Herrigel asked Mr. Metzler how they would accomplish establishing definition standards throughout the industry?

Mr. Metzler said that all facilities report recovery from all material categories to Metro for calculation of the regional system fee credit. He said staff will be able to line those up and determine what each facility is calling their different categories, which ones are common and which are different.

Mr. White said that both Tri-County Haulers and Oregon Refuse and Recycling Association have members who are both facility operators and haulers. He believes that contacting only facility operators would seem to "step over" some of the players. He would like a report back to SWAC with an update on the findings of staff on the definitions before they are actually applied.

Mr. Schwab noted that there was quite a bit of discussion with regard to the system fee credit program being eliminated if the tip fee were increased. He observed that a lot of effort was being exercised on a program that may or may not stay in the future.

Mr. Metzler said Metro would still impose the 25% recovery rate, whether or not the credit program existed. We will still need to know how best to calculate that 25% minimum recovery rate and make sure that each facility has a clear definition of what materials will be included in that calculation so everyone is on the same playing field.

Mr. Leichner said we need to know if material is source-separated, or is it construction and demolition debris (C&D). He said that one solution is to count all source-separated material, and then move the recovery rate curve up to take that into account. Then you are not so worried about defining what is coming in the door because you are counting everything.

Mr. Gilbert asked if we are looking a definition for in the front door or going out the back door? Also, he suggested that some facilities, such as his own, undertake processing that none of the other facilities do and wanted to know how you standardize that?

Mr. Metzler replied that it is calculated at the back door. He added that staff is not sure it will be necessary to standardize everything, but they will undertake to study the situation and make a

determination based on the results of that study. Mr. Metzler said that if standardizing doesn't make sense, it won't be done. He said that we are talking about "in the door" because that is before processing begins.

Mr. Irvine asked about the time frame for this project.

Mr. Metzler said staff wants to have this project completed within the next three to six months. He said staff would make a report on the findings to the SWAC meeting scheduled for January 2001, before implementing anything new.

Mr. Kampfer asked if there was a list of items that needed to be defined and/or standardized and would a subcommittee be asked to reconvene in order to help resolve this issue?

Mr. Metzler said he didn't believe a subcommittee was needed, especially in light of the study that staff will undertake to gather the information on the named materials. He said we are only talking about certain categories of mixed dry waste, and how you define them. Staff will focus on those areas, put together a list and determine whether or not any changes are necessary. He doesn't believe there will be a long list of materials that are named differently from facility to facility.

Mr. Petersen commented that the conclusion he draws from this is that the more staff looked into the area, they found different ways people are defining materials, so staff put a hold on doing anything until an effort was made to standardize definitions, and then go out and do a good job of measuring what is happening right now, and then look at it again six months from now. He believes Mr. Metzler has the right approach to the problem.

Mr. Petersen, taking over for Chair Washington as he stepped out of the meeting for a moment, asked if there were any additional comments on this agenda item. There were none.

Out-of-District Recycling Credits

Mr. Petersen briefly described the program for the benefit of the new SWAC member, Ms. Olberding. He explained that the Regional System Fee is one of the fees that Metro assesses on all waste that goes into a landfill. It pays for programs such as the waste reduction programs conducted at Metro, as well as our hazardous waste program. The fee is currently \$12.90/per ton and is assessed on all landfilled waste to pay for programs that benefit the whole region.

Mr. Petersen continued that Metro has a credit program, in which the facilities receive a credit on the payment of the fee as they achieve more recovery. He said that during discussions about new regional transfer stations, one of the issues that evolved was whether the credit program should be extended to facilities that are outside the Metro boundary. Currently, the program is applied to only those facilities that are within the boundary. In particular, the discussion was whether to include Grabhorn Landfill in Washington County and Hillsboro Landfill in Washington County, as well as the Vancouver, Washington transfer stations. We have concluded our evaluation, and Mr. Anderson has put together a white paper, which is included in your agenda packet for today's meeting. Mr. Petersen asked that comments on the conclusions presented in that paper

be directed to himself or Mr. Anderson quickly, because staff would like to make a recommendation to Council in early December.

Mr. Petersen said that it is our recommendation that the credit program not be extended to facilities outside the region, primarily because Metro does not have any type of formal or other regulatory relationship with facilities outside the Metro boundary. He said that waste that is delivered to, for instance, the Vancouver transfer station is through a license to the hauler transporting the waste, not through a franchise to the facility. He said that, more importantly, if you look at the rationale on how the Regional System Fee Credit program came into existence, it was due to a reduction in the region's tip fee from \$75 per ton to \$62.50. The region's facilities would be financially affected negatively because their margin of profit would be reduced and this would impair their ability to continue recovery efforts. The Council adopted a one-year program that would provide a "soft landing" for facilities; the Council has continued the program for the past three years due to the facilities' continued efforts toward more recovery. Mr. Petersen said the facilities outside the region were built, financed and operated for other reasons other than the Metro tip fee. He said the Metro tip fee was not what was driving investments in facilities outside the region, which is very different from facilities inside the region, where investments were based on the tip fee remaining at \$75 per ton.

Mr. Doug Drennen, from the gallery and representing Grabhorn Landfill, commented that although Metro is recommending the credits not be extended to facilities outside the region, it is still open to considering certain situations, although that is not spelled out specifically in the white paper. Mr. Drennen asked if that was a correct determination?

Mr. Petersen replied that Mr. Drennen was correct, that Metro might entertain some exceptions. He said one exception might be if Metro has some kind of arrangement with a local government that in effect extends Metro's regulatory authority outside of the current boundaries. He said Metro is currently discussing the possibility of an intergovernmental agreement with Washington County, whereby the County would turn over the regulatory authority for the solid waste facilities that are outside the Metro boundary, but inside the County. He said if that occurred, any facility within Washington County, but outside the Metro boundary, would have the same kind of regulatory relationship to Metro as a franchised facility within the boundary.

Mr. White asked if he could have his memory refreshed, and referred to Page 5 of the draft white paper, third paragraph from the bottom, "... it is important to emphasize the purpose of the program to ensure continuation of post-collection of the recovery path..." does that sound like the "make whole" portion of what Mr. Petersen was talking about. "... and not a direct subsidy of recycling efforts." He said the passage that talks about wanting to encourage additional recovery by making more than whole after 45%. He said he cannot remember how we got to the 45%, and was it just an opportunity to increase recycling.

Mr. Petersen said he believed Mr. White had a couple of issues in that comment, one is the geographic boundaries, and whether Metro should extend the credit program outside the region; the other is the whole issue of whether we change the program from what its original intention was to more of a direct subsidy of recycling and make it a permanent, recognized subsidy of recycling.

Mr. White said he would go a step further than that and say the original intention was to make whole due to the tip fee reduction, but a portion of the plan is to increase recycling. He said currently there is additional incentive, and therefore he sees a primary and a secondary purpose in the credit program. But, as it is now being explained, the only reason for the program was to make facilities whole during some interim period. Mr. White really believes there is a secondary purpose, which is to motivate facilities to incorporate new methods of recovering additional materials that facility owners might not have had the financial ability to undertake otherwise.

Chair Washington indicated that Mr. White was correct in his assessment of the paper.

Mr. Schwab added that most facilities are at that first point of being made whole. And if you go beyond where you already are, the credit was extended to additional recovery percentages. It is Mr. Schwab's opinion that there is enough subsidization of recycling.

Mr. Eric Merrill, from the gallery, representing Waste Connection, the facility in Vancouver, Washington, commented that he was disappointed in staff's recommendation to not extend the credit program to facilities outside the Metro boundary. He said he remembered the intent of the program's initiation differently. He remembered talk of extending the credits to facilities that were coming on-line and the intent was to promote recovery as opposed to the "soft landing" intent that Mr. Petersen earlier described. He said that he saw this as a way for Metro to correct a basic inequity that he sees in the tax. If you impose a tax and then give a credit against that tax, it is still a tax in total. The situation as it stands right now is that there is a basic inequity between in-state Metro facilities and out-of-state/out-of-Metro facilities, and he strongly suggests that Metro take a different stand and correct that inequity.

Mr. Ray Phelps, from the gallery, said he would like to make an observation: There are two parts to this program. There is the primary purpose of the credit, which is to make facilities whole due to the reduction of the tip fee, and the secondary purpose, to increase recovery and expand the program. Having said that, it seems that conversation more or less has to wait until staff completes the recovery rate analysis. Once we have a definition, and we determine whether we can make good on that definition, and improve and increase using those new definitions, then Metro may be able to look at advancing the program. But in the meantime, it is necessary to continue to keep whole the people who established their operation at the higher tip fee.

Other Business and Adjourn

Chair Washington asked if there were any further comments. There being none, Chair Washington asked if everyone would remain seated until he had an opportunity to thank each individual committee member for their participation on the committee and their continued cooperation during his chairmanship of the committee. He thanked the committee for their efforts.

The meeting was adjourned.

dk S: SHARE DEPT SWAC MINUTES 2000 HISSWAC SUALDOC

Agenda Item No. V New Chair Opening Remarks and Discussion Items Councilor Susan MacLain, Metro Councilor, District #4

FOR THE PUR REORGANIZE COUNCIL IN	ING THE METRO)))	RESOLUTION NO. 01-3023 Introduced by Presiding Officer David Bragdon
the Metro Code,	, the Metro Council elects its	s presidi	
appoints council	lors to serve as members of t	he stand	the deputy presiding officer, and ding committees of the Council and buncil-related committees or positions,
BE IT R	ESOLVED,		
	That the Metro Council has e residing officer during 2001		Councilor David Bragdon to serve as its
	hat the Metro Council confi uthority to appoint and remo		l acknowledges the presiding officer's ding committee members.
G C M C R	Browth Management Commit Community Planning Commit Management Committee is re Committee. The Metro Oper	ttees are ttee. The enamed ations C	s continued. The Transportation and e combined and renamed the he Regional Environmental the Solid Waste and Recycling Committee is renamed the Metro ommittee. A Natural Resources
ADOPTI	ED by the Metro Council thi	s 4th da	y of January, 2001.

David Bragdon, Presiding Officer

Approved as to form:

Daniel B. Cooper, General Counsel

c:r01-3023 stone

EXHIBIT "A"

COUNCIL STANDING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP*

<u>Budget and Finance Committee:</u> Councilor McLain, Chair; Councilor Hosticka, Vice-Chair; Councilor Atherton, Councilor Bragdon, Councilor Burkholder, Councilor Monroe, Councilor Park.

<u>Community Planning Committee:</u> Councilor Park, Chair; Councilor Monroe, Vice-Chair; Councilor Atherton, Councilor Bragdon, Councilor Burkholder, Councilor Hosticka, Councilor McLain.

<u>Solid Waste and Recycling Committee:</u> Councilor Atherton, Chair; Councilor McLain, Vice-Chair; Councilor Monroe.

Regional Facilities and Metro Operations Committee: Councilor Burkholder, Chair; Councilor Hosticka, Vice Chair; Councilor Park.

<u>Natural Resources Committee:</u> Councilor Hosticka, Chair; Councilor McLain, Vice-Chair; Councilor Atherton.

<u>Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation:</u> Councilor Monroe, Chair; Councilor Burkholder, Vice-Chair; Councilor Park.

 The presiding officer may serve as a member of any standing committee, serve as a member of a committee to create a quorum or, fill a committee vacancy as a result of a vacancy on the Council.

EXHIBIT "B"

COUNCILOR ANCILLARY APPOINTMENTS

Deputy Presiding Officer: Councilor McLain

Council Parliamentarian: Councilor Hosticka

<u>Friends of the Oregon Zoo Board of Directors:</u> Councilor Monroe, Councilor Burkholder

<u>Metro Policy Advisory Committee:</u> Councilor Bragdon; Councilor Park; Councilor McLain (non-voting delegates).

Greenspaces Citizens Advisory Committee: Councilor Hosticka, Councilor Atherton, Councilor Bragdon

Greenspaces Liaison: Councilor Hosticka

Metro CCI Liaison: Councilor Burkholder, Councilor McLain (Alternate)

Oregon Regional Council Association Board of Directors: Councilor Hosticka, Councilor Bragdon (Alternate)

Regional Emergency Management Policy Advisory Committee: Councilor Park,
Councilor McLain

Regional Water Services Leadership Group: Councilor McLain, Councilor Park, Councilor Hosticka (Alternate)

Smith and Bybee Lakes Management Committee: Councilor Burkholder, Councilor Hosticka.

Regional Environmental Management Policy Advisory Committee (SWAC):
Councilor McLain, Chair; Councilor Atherton

Page 1 of 2 -- Exhibit "B"

Regional Environmental Management Rate Review Committee: Councilor Atherton, Councilor McLain (Alternate)

SW Washington Regional Transportation Policy Committee: Councilor Monroe, Councilor Burkholder

<u>Tri-Met Committee on Accessible Transportation:</u> Councilor Burkholder, Councilor Monroe

Regional Water Consortium: Councilor McLain; Councilor Hosticka (Alternate)

Water Resources Policy Advisory Committee: Councilor McLain, Chair; Councilor Hosticka (alternate)

Washington County Transportation Advisory Group: Councilor McLain; Councilor Hosticka

Neighboring Cities Grant: Councilor McLain

Cascadia Task Force: Councilor Hosticka, Councilor Bragdon

1% for Art: Councilor Bragdon

Portland/Multnomah County Progress Board: Councilor Park

Portland State Institute of Urban Studies: Councilor Bragdon, Councilor Park

Columbia Slough Watershed Council: Councilor Burkholder

Metro Central Enhancement Committee: Councilor Burkholder

Metro North Portland Enhancement Committee: Councilor Burkholder

JPACT Bi-State Transportation Committee: Councilor Monroc

Housing Technical Advisory Committee: Councilor Burkholder

Governor's Willamette Valley Livability Forum: Councilor Hosticka; Councilor Park (Alternate)

Page 2 of 2 -- Exhibit "B"

EXHIBIT "C"

COUNCIL REGULAR AND COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE

ALL WEEKS:

Thursday: 2:00 PM Council Regular Meeting

1ST AND 3RD WEEKS:

Tuesday: 2:00 PM Community Planning Committee

Wednesday: 1:30 PM Natural Resources Committee

3:30 PM Solid Waste and Recycling Committee

2ND AND 4TH WEEKS:

Tuesday: 2:00 PM Informal Meeting (if needed)

Wednesday: 2:00 PM Budget and Finance Committee (if needed)

Thursday: 10:00 AM Regional Facilities & Operations Committee

Regularly scheduled committee meeting times may be changed by an unanimous
vote of the committee members as long as it does not conflict with times of other
standing committees or meetings of the Metro Council.

Page 1 of 1 -- Exhibit "C"

NOTE: The following pages are extracted from Ordinance 00-860A.

These pages explain the purpose and conditions for all committees.

The excluded portions of the ordinance describe individual committees.

The entire ordinance may be obtained by calling the Council Office at (503) 797-1542

STATE AND LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORT

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. OO-860A, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 2.19 TO THE METRO CODE RELATING TO ADVISORY COMMITTEES

Date: November 1, 2000 Presented by: Councilor McLain

Committee Action: At its October 10 meeting, the State and Legislative Affairs Committee voted 3-0 to recommend Council adoption of Resolution 00-860A. Voting in favor: Councilors Park, Bragdon and McLain.

Background

- Existing Law: Repeals existing Metro code relating to advisory committees, and creates new code chapter 2.19.
- Budget Impact: Requires that staff and resources for the maintenance of each advisory committee be budgeted annually.

Committee Issues/Discussion: The committee held several meetings and a public hearing prior to creating this new Metro code chapter. At the October 10 meeting the committee accepted several amendments from Councilor Washington related to the membership of the North Portland Rehabilitation and Enhancement Committee, thus making the resolution an A version.

BEFORE THE METRO COUNCIL

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING A NEW) ORDINANCE NO. 00-860A
CHAPTER 2.19 TO THE METRO CODE	j
RELATING TO ADVISORY) Introduced by Council State & Federal
COMMITTEES) Legislative Committee, Executive Officer
) Mike Burton, Councilor Susan McLain and
) Councilor Rod Monroe

WHEREAS, the Metro Council desires to provide clarification and consistency for all Metro Council Advisory Committees to be set forth in one chapter of the Metro Code; now, therefore,

THE METRO COUNCIL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. That a new Metro Code Chapter 2.19 is hereby added to the Metro Code as attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and
- 2. Sections 2.01.160, 2.12.020, 2.12.030, Chapter 2.13, Chapter 3.08, Sections 5.04.040, 5.06.045, 5.06.060, 5.06.070, 5.06.080 and Chapter 5.08 of the Metro Code are hereby repealed; and
- 3. Except for Resolution No. 98-2698, any and all resolutions adopted by the Council prior to the adoption of this ordinance pertaining to advisory committees or task forces are hereby rescinded and superceded.

ADOPTED by the Metro Council this 9th day of November 2000.

David Bragdon, Presiding Officer

Recording Secretary

Page 1 Ordinance No. 00-860A 1:\R-O\00-860.AdvComm.05.doc

OGC/DBC/sm 10/26/00

Approved as to Form:

Daniel B. Cooper, General Counsel

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 00-860A

Chapter 2.19

METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEES

2.19.001	PURPOSE AND INTENT	1
2.19.002	DEFINITIONS	2
2.19.003	MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADVISORY COMMITTEES	3
2.19.004	ADVISORY COMMITTEE PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY	4
2.19.005	ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS	4
2.19.006	TASK FORCES	
2.19.007	STATUS OF ALL ADVISORY COMMITTEES	
2.19.008	METRO POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MPAC)	6
2.19.009	JOINT POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION (JPACT)	7
2.19.010	METRO COMMITTEE FOR CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT (MCCI)	7
2.19.011	METRO 401K EMPLOYEE SALARY SAVINGS PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE (401K	
	ESSPAC)	8
2.19.012	METRO CENTRAL STATION COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE (MCSCE)	8
2.19.013	METRO SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SWAC)	9
2.19.014	NORTH PORTLAND REHABILITATION AND ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE (NPREC)	. 13
2.19.015	INVESTMENT ADVISORY BOARD (IAB)	. 13
2.19.016	REGIONAL PARKS AND GREENSPACES ADVISORY COMMITTEE (RPGAC)	. 14
2.19.017	RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE (RRC)	. 15
2.19.018	TRANSPORTATION POLICY ALTERNATIVES COMMITTEE (TPAC)	. 17
2.19.019	WATER RESOURCES POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WRPAC)	. 19
2.19.020		

2.19.001 PURPOSE AND INTENT

It is the purpose of this chapter to set forth general terms, conditions, functions and responsibility for all advisory committees (Advisory Committees) that have been created by action of the Metro Council or are required pursuant to applicable provisions of the 1992 Metro Charter or Oregon or federal law. In general, this chapter applies to all Advisory Committees of Metro that are public bodies subject to Oregon's Public Meetings (ORS 192.610 et. seq.), whether or not the specific Advisory Committee is mentioned herein. It is not the intent to govern or adopt requirements for committees that are appointed by or report solely to individual Metro officers and which are therefore not subject to Oregon Public Meeting Law. In addition, this chapter does not apply to committees created by the Metro Council that consist solely of members of the Council or to any Metro Commission which exercises administrative functions. It is also not the intent of this chapter to amend any existing agreement with other governmental bodies, which have provisions for the creation and utilization of jointly appointed Advisory Committees.

2.19.002 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

- (a) "Advisory Committee" means any committee, task force or group, created by an official action of the Metro Council or 1992 Charter, including but not limited to, any public body or advisory group described in this chapter.
- (b) "Appointment" means the formal selection of a person to serve as a member of an Advisory Committee.
- (c) "Appointment authority" means the Executive Officer or council members or other entity specifically authorized to appoint an Advisory Committee member.
- (d) "Confirmation" means the process by which the Metro Council approves the appointment of a member of an Advisory Committee.
- (e) "JPACT" means Joint Policy Advisory Committee On Transportation.
- (f) "MCSCE" means Metro Central Station Community Enhancement Committee.
- (g) "MPAC" means Metro Policy Advisory Committee.
- (h) "Nomination" means the formal submission to an appointing authority of a candidate for appointment to an Advisory Committee.
- (i) "NPREC" means North Portland Rehabilitation and Enhancement Committee.
- (j) "RPGAC" means Regional Parks and Greenspaces Advisory Committee.
- (k) "RRC" means Rate Review Committee.
- (l) "SWAC" means Solid Waste Advisory Committee.
- (m) "Task Force" means any public body created by resolution or any official action of the Metro Council, which is not specifically defined in this chapter or any provision of the Metro Code.
- (n) "Tax Study Committee" means before considering the imposition of any new tax or taxes, which do not require prior voter approval under the Metro Charter, the Tax Study Committee shall consult with and advise the Metro Council regarding adoption of these taxes.

- (o) "TPAC" means Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee.
- (p) "WRPAC" means Water Resources Policy Advisory Committee.
- (q) "401K ESSPAC" means Metro 401K Employee Salary Savings Plan Advisory Committee.

2.19.003 MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADVISORY COMMITTEES

(a) <u>Membership In General</u>.

- (1) The Executive Officer shall ensure that the recruitment and selection process for appointments to vacant positions is open to all segments of the community and ensures a broad representation and diversity of membership. It is the policy of Metro not to discriminate with regard to race, color, religion, natural origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, or mental or familial status in making appointments to Advisory Committees.
- (2) The Executive Officer is encouraged to streamline and standardize the recruitment and selection process, to a reasonable extent, and to facilitate a standing pool of volunteer candidates across the agency.
- (3) Advisory committees may submit names to the Executive Officer for inclusion in a list of interested and qualified candidates but nomination by an Advisory Committee may not be a requirement for appointment.

(b) Appointments and Confirmations.

- (1) Except as it is specifically provided for membership of MPAC and JPACT, or for certain positions specified for elected officials, as set forth in this chapter, all members of all Advisory Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Officer, unless the appointment is specifically assigned to members of the Council. All persons appointed by the Executive Officer or council members shall be subject to confirmation by the Council. A minimum of four (4) votes in favor of a specific appointment shall be necessary to confirm the appointment. Any person whose confirmation is defeated by four (4) or more votes in opposition, shall not be eligible for appointment to the same Advisory Committee during the succeeding twelve (12) months. The appointing authority may remove appointed members.
- (2) Appointments of members to individual Advisory Committees may be subject to nominations made by specified entities to the appointing authority. Under no circumstance shall any Advisory Committee have the authority to nominate members to serve on the committee itself.

- (3) Appointments and confirmation to Advisory Committees may be made with relevant geographical expertise or other criteria in mind. As a general rule, however, recruitment, appointment and confirmation of committee members will be conducted in a manner that attempts to reflect the demographic profile of the region as a whole.
- (4) <u>Alternate Members</u>. Alternates may vote only in the absence of a specific regular member. Appointment and confirmation of alternates shall be subject to the same requirements that apply to regular members.

(c) Terms.

- (1) All appointments made by the Executive Officer or members of the Council shall be for a term of two (2) years or to fill a vacancy in the remaining portion of a term not to exceed two (2) years.
- (2) No person may be appointed to serve more than two (2) consecutive full two (2) year terms on the same committee nor may any person be appointed to fill more than one partial term on any one committee. However, employees of agencies serving as the nominees of their employer are not subject to these limitations on terms.
- (3) Members shall continue to serve until their successor is appointed and confirmed.
- (d) Effective Date. The provisions of this chapter take effect on _______, 2001. [Insert date, which is 90 days after adoption of ordinance.]

2.19.004 ADVISORY COMMITTEE PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY

The purpose and authority of each Advisory Committee shall be limited to matters specified in the action creating the committee and other matters specifically authorized by action of the Metro Council or other provisions of applicable law.

2.19.005 ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS

Each Advisory Committee may adopt bylaws governing the Advisory Committee's functions and procedures. Bylaws may not govern the membership or authority of any Advisory Committee. Unless specifically authorized by the Council or the Executive Officer for any specific Advisory Committee, Advisory Committees shall function as committees of the whole and may not appoint sub-committees or otherwise create any advisory body that constitutes a public body pursuant to Oregon Public Meeting law. However, sub-committees of limited duration may be created as provided in Section 2.19.007(d).

DATE:

January 23, 2001

TO:

Members of SWAC

FROM:

Susan McLain, SWAC Chair

RE:

Standing meeting time for SWAC

As you are aware, I must change the standing meeting time for SWAC. At our special meeting on January 29, I would like to set the permanent standing time for SWAC during 2001.

During the last several weeks, REM staff has polled you on preferences for a new time and day. The 21 responses we received from 22 voting members indicated the following preferences among the options provided:

10 indicated 1st Mondays, 3:00 to 5:00

10 indicated Thursdays from noon to 2

1 indicated 2nd Mondays, 3:00 to 5:00

0 indicated Fridays

However, 20 of the respondents indicated that these times were preferred among the options provided, but none were ideal. Therefore, I offer one additional option for your consideration on January 29:

Mondays, from noon to 2:00

Please come prepared to make a final selection at the meeting on January 29. Thank you in advance.

DATE:

January 23, 2001

TO:

Members of SWAC and interested parties

FROM:

Terry Petersen, REM Director

RE:

REM Work Plan

You will find attached for your information and review a work schedule for the Regional Environmental Management Department in calendar year 2001.

This plan identifies the highest priority issues, programs and projects for the department in calendar year 2001 as we see them in January 2001.

This schedule is a work-in-progress and is provided to stimulate discussion at the meeting of the Regional Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) on January 29, 2001.

This work schedule will also form the basis of discussion and agendas for the Solid Waste and Recycling Committee of the Council during 2001.

I look forward to your comments and additions to the plan at the SWAC meeting on January 29, and in future meetings.

Regional Environmental Management Department Work Plan January 29, 2001

WORK IN PROGRESS FOR DISCUSSION

The second secon	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	
DEM Planning & Stratogic Issues												
REM Planning & Strategic Issues 1. REM Strategic Plan		S,C				S,C		S,C				-
2. Position REM in the current solid waste system						-				316		
◆ Scope of regulation (rate-setting, etc.)				1.70								
♦ New challenges to recycling (courts & otherwise)												
3. Regional Solid Waste Management Plan (RSWMP)												
◆ Integration of waste reduction initiatives				S,C				S,C				
◆ Review year 2000 with DEQ	-			S,C		- ***						
Alignment of Plan with the current system				S,C				S,C				
Capital Improvement Plan									S,C			_
5. 5-Year Financial Plan					S,C				S	C		Г
3. 3 Total I marioral Fian		L			5,0							-
Programs					5,0							_
				444								
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation				### ###								
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation		-							S	C		
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development		-			#							
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development 4. Regional system fee credit program 5. Product stewardship & electronic waste in particular		-			#	•••						
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development 4. Regional system fee credit program 5. Product stewardship & electronic waste in particular Projects		-			#							
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development 4. Regional system fee credit program 5. Product stewardship & electronic waste in particular Projects 1. Bring closure to regional transfer station applications		C			#							
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development 4. Regional system fee credit program 5. Product stewardship & electronic waste in particular Projects 1. Bring closure to regional transfer station applications 2. Resolving the "10%" issue		C			#	•••						
Programs 1. New Hazardous Waste program implementation 2. State scrap tire legislation 3. Recycling market development 4. Regional system fee credit program 5. Product stewardship & electronic waste in particular Projects 1. Bring closure to regional transfer station applications		C			C							